#### **CULTURE, HERITAGE AND LIBRARIES COMMITTEE**

#### Monday, 23 November 2020

Minutes of the meeting of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee held virtually on Monday, 23 November 2020 at 11.30 am

#### **Present**

Members:

Deputy Wendy Hyde (Chair) Deputy Tom Hoffman

Jeremy Simons (Deputy Chair)

Ann Holmes

Munsur Ali Alderman Robert Howard

Matthew Bell Vivienne Littlechild
Deputy John Bennett Deputy Edward Lord
Peter Bennett Jeremy Mayhew
Deputy David Bradshaw Wendy Mead

Thomas Clementi Barbara Newman

Mary Durcan John Petrie

Deputy Kevin Everett Deputy Dr Giles Shilson

Caroline Haines Deputy Tom Sleigh (Ex-Officio Member)

The Revd Stephen Haines James Tumbridge Graeme Harrower Dawn Wright

#### In Attendance

Officers:

Chloe Rew - Town Clerk's Department

Peter Lisley - Assistant Town Clerk/Director of Major Projects

Nick Bodger - Town Clerk's Department
Andrew Buckingham - Town Clerk's Department
Jack Joslin - Town Clerk's Department
Geoff Pick - Town Clerk's Department

Sarah Phillips - Town Clerk's Department/ Remembrancer's

Graham Nickless - Chamberlain's Department
Julie Smith - Chamberlain's Department
Ellen Wentworth - Chamberlain's Department

Kay English
 Department for the Built Environment
 Department for the Built Environment
 Carol Boswarthack
 Community & Children's Services
 Rachel Pye
 Markets & Consumer Protection

Colin Buttery - Director of Open Spaces
Christopher Earlie - Open Spaces Department

#### 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Tracey Graham, Sylvia Moys, Graham Packham, Deputy Richard Regan and Mark Wheatley.

## 2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

The Chair declared a prejudicial and non-pecuniary interest in respect of the Beckett Pageant at Item 6.

#### 3. MINUTES

RESOLVED, that – the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 21 September 2020 be agreed as a correct record.

#### 4. FORWARD PLAN

The Committee's forward plan was noted.

## 5. CITY ARTS INITIATIVE: RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE CULTURE, HERITAGE AND LIBRARIES COMMITTEE

Members considered a report of the Director of Major Projects relative to the City Arts Initiative's Recommendations to the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee.

RESOLVED, that – Members ratify the City Arts Initiative's recommendations in relation to proposal 1-2 in the report as follows:

- Amulet: An Icon of Future Finance: approve subject to Planning Permission and Scheduled Monument consent being granted, as well as the other recommendations outlined in the main report.
- **Monument to Human Trafficking:** decline the application, noting the technical issues outlined in the main report.

#### 6. **INSPIRING LONDON THROUGH CULTURE**

Members considered a report of the Director of Major Projects relative to the Inspiring London Through Culture funding stream.

In response to Members' queries regarding rejecting the Beckett Pageant, the Cultural and Visitor Development Director advised that other avenues for funding from the City Corporation had been identified and the Head of the Central Grants Unit had contacted the Beckett Pageant to discuss these.

#### RESOLVED. that Members:

- note the grants approved by the panel under the Inspiring London through Culture funding stream, a part of the City Corporation's Central Grants Programme;
- 2. approve the panel recommendation to reject the application for the Beckett Pageant which applied for £15,000; and,
- 3. note the grants rejected and pending by the panel under the Inspiring London through Culture funding stream.

## 7. COVID-19 SUPPLEMENT TO THE CITY'S VISITOR DESTINATION STRATEGY

Members received a report of the Director of Major Projects relative to the COVID-19 Supplement to the City's Visitor Destination Strategy.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

#### 8. CITY INFORMATION CENTRE: ANNUAL REPORT

Members received a report of the Director of Major Projects relative to the City Information Centre Annual Report which outlined the latest position of the City Information Centre (CIC).

Members expressed concern regarding the circumstances of the CIC, which had been heavily impacted by COVID-19. The Director noted factors such as lack of tourists, the Foreign Exchange moving out, decline in leaflet-rack rentals, and no longer being permitted to sell tickets to attractions due to track-and-trace measures. The Director emphasised the importance of the CIC as a resource for tourism and the significant role it may play in recovery, but that the CIC was struggling due to reliance on commercial income.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

#### 9. CULTURE AND COMMERCE TASKFORCE

Members received a report of the Director of Major Projects relative to the Culture and Commerce Taskforce.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

#### 10. CULTURE'S ROLE IN DRIVING INVESTMENT AND BUSINESS

Members received a report of the Director of Major Projects relative to Culture's Role in Driving Investment and Business.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

#### 11. BLACK HISTORY MONTH AND GOOGLE ARTS & CULTURE

Members received a report of the Director of Major Projects relative to Black History Month and Google Arts & Culture. Progress is underway to develop the City's Google presence; to develop cultural programming and activities to include communities which have been underrepresented in the City's cultural output.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

### 12. BARBICAN AND COMMUNITY LIBRARIES - EXEMPTIONS FOR SERVICES DURING THE SECOND LOCKDOWN

Members received a report of the Director of Community & Children's Services relative to the Barbican and Community Libraries Exemptions for Services During the Second Lockdown. Members were informed that the libraries offered 'select and collect' services by phone and email for lending; PCs were available for essential use; and that the libraries had been proactive in communicating

these services with library members. The libraries had received positive feedback from their members, particularly from those who use the libraries for essential services.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

#### 13. LONDON METROPOLITAN ARCHIVES: ACCREDITATION

The Director of the London Metropolitan Archives was heard with respect to the LMA being re-awarded the Archive Service Accreditation, demonstrating that the LMA met the national standards relating to management, resourcing, care of its collection and service offering. A detailed report would be brought to the Committee in January 2021.

RESOLVED, that – the update be noted.

#### 14. DRAFT MINUTES - KEATS HOUSE CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE

RESOLVED, that – the draft minutes of the Keats House Consultative Committee meeting held on 15 October 2020 be received.

#### 15. MID-YEAR UPDATE REPORT FOR KEATS HOUSE CHARITY, 2020/21

Members received a report of the Director of Open Spaces relative to the Mid-Year Update Report for the Keats House Charity for 2020/21. The Director informed Members that content was made available online, but that COVID-19 had a severe impact on visitation. Members who had visited Keats House were impressed with the service and measures in place when the site was open.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

#### 16. SPECIAL EVENTS ON THE HIGHWAY ANNUAL REPORT

Members considered a report of the Director of the Built Environment relative to the Special Events on the Highway Annual Report. Whilst Members welcomed the programme of events, Members requested that residents and churches would be given advance notice of street closures ahead of the events.

RESOLVED, that – Members agree to support the proposed events outlined in this report subject to the appropriate constraints and guidance related to COVID-19.

#### 17. RESETTING OF DEPARTMENTAL BUDGETS

Members received a report of the Chamberlain relative to the resetting of departmental budgets. The report was presented to a number of Committees to inform Members of changes in the budgets of their service areas in light of the impact of COVID-19. Members were asked to note in particular the recommended budget adjustment of £392,000 for Open Spaces (Monument) as the attraction was closed.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

## 18. REVIEW OF PILOT AND FUTURE BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES FUNDING FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY AGAINST ILLEGAL STREET TRADING ON AND BY THE BRIDGES

Members received a report of the Director of Markets & Consumer Protection relative to the review of pilot and future Bridge House Estates (BHE) funding for enforcement activity against illegal street trading on and by the bridges. Members were informed that the two-year pilot project had been successful, with a near elimination of illegal street trading, due to the BHE funding which allowed for resources to be deployed on the bridges 7 days per week. Additional work was being done in collaboration with the City of London Police to address other illegal activity (gambling, pickpockets); enhanced enforcement powers enabled officers to work across boundaries in Southwark and Tower Hamlets; and partnerships with organisations such as the National Food Crime Agency were beneficial in addressing crime on the bridges.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

#### 19. \* REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN

Members received a report of the Town Clerk & Chief Executive relative to a decision taken under urgency since the Committee's last meeting regarding the membership of the Benefices Sub-Committee.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

### 20. \* GATEWAY 3 - TOWER BRIDGE HV SYSTEM REPLACEMENT AND INCREASING RESILIENCE

Members received a Gateway 3 report of the City Surveyor relative to the Tower Bridge HV System Replacement and Increasing Resilience.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

### 21. \* GATEWAY 4C - TOWER BRIDGE HV SYSTEM REPLACEMENT AND INCREASING RESILIENCE

Members received a Gateway 4c report of the City Surveyor relative to the Tower Bridge HV System Replacement and Increasing Resilience.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

## 22. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were none.

#### 23. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT

There was no other business.

#### 24. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that – under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

#### 25. **NON-PUBLIC MINUTES**

RESOLVED, that – the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2020 be agreed as a correct record.

#### 26. LOOK AHEAD TO 2021/2022 - CHIEF OFFICERS UPDATE

Chief Officers provided verbal updates on their respective service areas.

RESOLVED, that – the updates be received.

## 27. REPURPOSING OF FUNDING FOR LONDON & PARTNERS DOMESTIC TOURISM CONSORTIUM

Members received a report of the Director of Major Projects relative to repurposing of funding from London & Partners domestic tourism consortium to a joint initiative with the City's BIDs and business partnerships to drive footfall to the City.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

## 28. TOWER BRIDGE (BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES CHARITY REGISTRATION NO.1035628) AND MONUMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT APRIL TO SEPT 2020

Members received a report of the Director of Open Spaces relative to the Tower Bridge and Monument Performance Report from April to September 2020.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

## 29. \* NON-PUBLIC APPENDIX - TOWER BRIDGE GATEWAY 3 APPENDIX 3 The non-public appendix was received with the report of the City Surveyor at Agenda Item 20.

# 30. \* NON-PUBLIC APPENDIX - TOWER BRIDGE GATEWAY 4C APPENDIX 3 The non-public appendix was received with the report of the City Surveyor at Agenda Item 21.

## 31. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There was one question.

## 32. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was no other business.

### The meeting ended at 1.03 pm

-----

Chair

Contact Officer: Chloe Rew tel. no.: 020 7332 1427

chloe.rew@cityoflondon.gov.uk